
 

AGENDA FOR 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 
Contact: Chloe Ashworth 
Direct Line: 0161 253 66405130 
E-mail: C.Ashworth@bury.gov.uk 
Web Site:  www.bury.gov.uk 
 
 
To: All Members of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Councillors: R Bernstein (Chair), C Birchmore, 
N Boroda, L Dean, U Farooq, G McGill, K Peel, M Powell, 
L Smith, D.Vernon and C Walsh 

 
 
Dear Member/Colleague 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Thursday, 18 November 2021 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 6.30 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted. 

Notes:  



AGENDA 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES   
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any matters on the agenda and, if so, to 
formally declare that interest. 
 

3   MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
The minutes from the meeting held on 14th September 2021 are attached 
for approval. 
 

4   MATTERS ARISING   
 
The Monitoring Officer will update the committee following the Democratic 
Arrangements Forum which considered if the Employment Appointments 
Panel should appoint to the Head of Waste Management. 
 
The Chair to update on the establishment of the Performance and Finance 
Subgroup. The first meeting will take place on the 23rd of November 
2021 at 6:00pm. 
 

5   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   
 
A period of 30 minutes has been set aside for members of the public to 
ask questions on matters considered at the last meeting and set out in 
the minutes or on the agenda for tonight’s meeting. 
 

6   MEMBER QUESTIONS   
 
A period of up to 15 minutes will be allocated for questions and 
supplementary questions from members of the Council who are not 
members of the committee. This period may be varied at the discretion of 
the chair. 
 

7   REGENERATION FOLLOW UP ITEM  (Pages 15 - 82) 
 

A. Sir Howard Bernstein will be in attendance to answer any questions 
from members of Committee in relation to the work he is 
supporting regarding Radcliffe regeneration. 
 

B. Paul Lakin Director of Regeneration and David Lynch Assistant 
Director Regeneration to present an overview of regeneration in the 
Borough at the meeting. Report and presentation attached 

 

8   HOUSING REPORT  (Pages 83 - 90) 
 
Report from Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member for Housing Services is 
attached. 



 

9   LGA CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE FEEDBACK  (Pages 91 - 124) 
 
Report by Councillor Tahir Rafiq, Cabinet Member for Corporate Affairs & 
HR attached. 
 

10   WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 125 - 126) 
 

11   URGENT  BUSINESS   
 
Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

 
 Minutes of: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 14 September 2021 

 
 Present: Councillor R Bernstein (in the Chair) 

Councillors C Birchmore, N Boroda, L Dean, K Peel, M Powell, 
L Smith and D.Vernon 
 

 Also in 
attendance: 

 
Councillor O’Brien – Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Growth 
Councillor Alan Quinn – Cabinet Member Environment 
Climate Change and Operations 
Jacqui Dennis – Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
Paul Lakin – Director of Economic Regeneration & Capital 
Growth 
Sam Evans – Section 151 Officer 
Donna Ball – Executive Director Operations 
Neil Long – Assistant Director Operations 
Julie Gallagher – Democratic Services Officer 
 

 Public Attendance: 
 

No members of the public were present at the meeting. 

 Apologies for Absence: 
 

Councillor U Farooq, Councillor G McGill and Councillor 
C Walsh 
 

 

OSC.1  SITE VISIT (RADCLIFFE)  
 

The Chair placed on record his thanks to Officers and the Leader for facilitating the 
visit prior to the meeting. 
 

OSC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

Councillor L Smith declared a personal interest in the item: Regeneration Theme – 
Radcliffe, in member questions as she is a Member of the Radcliffe Market 
Cooperative. 
 

OSC.3  MINUTES  
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 th and 29th July 2021 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

OSC.4  MATTERS ARISING  
 

  

(A)  Accelerated land sales Call in 

Following the recommendation agreed at the last meeting of the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee to Cabinet: 

“The Overview and Scrutiny Committee strongly support Community Asset 
Transfers and recommend to Cabinet that policies are reviewed and strengthened 

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021  
 
 

 
2 

to incorporate earlier communication with residents" 
 

The Chair reported he had attended the meeting of Cabinet and in response, 

Councillor Eamonn O’Brien, Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and Growth, 

reported that Cabinet welcomed this recommendation. He advised that the 

council was committed to support residents through the community asset transfer 

procedure. 

  

 
(B)   Sub Groups 

 
The Chair reported that he will met with the Leader to discuss the establishment 

of the Overview and Scrutiny Sub groups. 

 

OSC.5  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 

The Chair reported that two questions were received in advance of the meeting; 
the members of the public were not present the Chair reported that the responses 
would therefore be made available on the Council’s website following the meeting.  
 

OSC.6  MEMBER QUESTION TIME  
 

The following questions from members of the public were received in advance of 
the meeting: 
 
Question ONE: The update report on changes to refuse collections 
stipulates that “there is also a risk that the planned saving of £150k is not 
achieved in 21/22.” What is the likelihood of the saving being achieved? 

Councillor Jack Rydeheard 
 

Councillor Quinn, Cabinet Member, reported that the achievement of the £150k 
saving in 21/22 is affected by a number of issues that are separate from the 
stabilisation of the new rounds. This includes unavoidable additional costs 
throughout the year as a result of already covering for long term sickness, Covid 
related absence, shortage of HGV drivers and holidays prior to the new rounds 
being introduced as well as ongoing cover. The budgets will be reported via 
corporate financial reports to Cabinet. The overall waste management budget is 
already forecast to overspend. If not achieved in 21/22 the saving will be achieved 
in 22/23 and ongoing. 
 
Question two: The chaos surrounding missed bin collections is still 
ongoing. The Cabinet Member responsible, gave assurance at the last full 
Council in July that he accepted responsibility and would ensure the bin 
collection system would be back to normal. As this has not happened,  
would the Cabinet Minister resign and hand responsibility over to 
someone capable of doing the job properly? 

Councillor Jackie Harris 
Councillor Quinn, Cabinet Member reported since 21 June the performance had 
dropped below acceptable standards but performance has improved to near 
‘business as usual’ over the past few weeks, however we’ve still more to do to 

Page 6



 Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021 
 
 

 
3 

build in resilience. The percentage of missed bins had a peak on 2 successive 
Fridays at the start of August when 22% of bins were missed because the rounds 
weren’t working well enough as well as from issues such as holidays, sickness, 
shortage of HGV drivers, blocked access, and roadworks. At the end of the week 
beginning 16 August this had significantly reduced to 1.9% missed bins per day. 
 
Question 3 :The Council has aired plans for the development of the 
basement at Radcliffe Market as part of the regeneration plans. Given that 
such a conversion would involve considerable sums of money what are 
the plans around the responsibility of day to day running of this 
operation. 
A Community Benefit Society is by its nature run by enthusiastic unpaid 
volunteers who are by no means certain to possess the skills required to 
manage such an operation. 
Is a Community Benefit Society the best practice option, given the 
internal wrangling that has and is taking place at the moment and what 
options if any are being explored to maintain and expand upon the 
continued success of the Market.  

Councillor Mike Smith 
The Leader reported that the Radcliffe Market Hall Community Benefit Society 
manages the market operation within the market hall building which is still owned 
by the Council. The Council also owns the spaces within the basement and 
chambers which are included within the Levelling Up proposals. 
There is no contract in place between Radcliffe Market CBS and the facilities 
included within the Levelling Up proposals. It would be great if local councillors 
assisted the council in exploring options around integrating these spaces into the 
community. We have options for these spaces and as we get more clarity on the 
outcome of the funding, it would be great to collaborate with councillors and the 
community on the development of the specification and explore options for the 
long term management.  
 
Question Four: Why has the Council failed to fully engage with tenants of 
the commercial properties who will be impacted by the plans for the Hub 
in Radcliffe town centre especially after the Council bought the building in 
April 2021? With only short amounts of time remaining on their leases it 
has fallen to the shop owners to contact Bury Council to find out what is 
happening. Do you think engagement with these primary stakeholders 
has met the standards it should have done? 

 
With rumours of changes at Radcliffe Market can the Leader please 
explain what the plans are for the Market going forward? How does the 
Council propose that it will ensure that this is investigated in an open way 
to ensure public confidence in the market going forward? 

Councillor Jo Lancaster 
The Leader reported The Council acquired the estate from London & Associated 
Properties (LAP) in May 2021. It would be unfair to hold the council accountable 
for the actions (or inaction) of another organisation before we were involved. 
However, the Council acquired the properties in May, with LAP continuing to act as 
the landlord, managing day to day issues, tenancies, payment and 
communication. Their managing agent called Carter Towler Surveyors immediately 
wrote to the tenants updating them on the change of ownership. 

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021  
 
 

 
4 

The Council is aware of the disruption to local businesses when we have to 
demolish the building to deliver the Radcliffe regeneration programme. With this in 
mind we also wrote to the tenants – updating them on as much info we have 
before the Levelling Up announcement later in the year – assigning a nominated 
council property officer to each tenant. 
Since then each tenant has been contacted several times to understand their 
property requirements with a view to exploring the following options 

1) moving the tenants to other council owned commercial property in Radcliffe 
town centre 

2) moving the tenants to non-owned commercial property in Radcliffe town 
centre 

3) moving the tenants to other council owned commercial property elsewhere 
in the district 

4) moving the tenant to non-owned commercial property elsewhere in the 
district 

5) moving the tenants into the completed Hub building once its complete in c.2 
years time 

6) interim arrangements for temporary relocation 
7) exploring ways in which the council can assist with the moving 
8) exploring ways in which the council can assist with the financial impact 

 
Whilst written and phone communication is good, its not as effective as face-to-
face meetings and building relationships with the affected tenants. As restrictions 
have been lifted, and when it has been safe to allow officers to do so, we have 
also commenced a series of face to face meeting with individual tenants – some of 
which have been attended by Councillors. We will continue to do this going 
forwards. 
The disruption of demolishing the buildings (needed to unlock the regeneration of 
the town) and the uncertainty around timings is not ideal and we are sympathetic 
to the businesses in Radcliffe town centre. To facilitate further meaningful 
conversations and understanding of the property options available to tenants 
affected, we are actually opening a council regeneration office in a vacant shop on 
Dale Street. This will be open in the next couple of weeks and allow tenants, local 
businesses, politicians and members of the public to drop in and discuss the 
programme with officers from the Regeneration, Property and Planning teams. 
This office will also be used by the new community hub team when operating from 
Radcliffe.  
Radcliffe Market  
Radcliffe Market is open and continues to trade. The councils Market service is 
working with Radcliffe Market Hall Community Benefit Society regarding changes 
in their board of directors. We are happy to update councillors fo llowing the 
conclusion of this work. 
As previously stated there is no contract in place between Radcliffe Market and the 
facilities included within the Levelling Up proposals. It would be great if local 
councillors assisted the council in exploring options around integrating these 
spaces into the community. 
 
Question five: Can the Leader of the Council provide a list of the number 

of staff receiving gross salaries including Bury MBC NI Contribution and 

Pension payments in the range of:  

£0-£40,000 / £40,001-£85,000 / £85,001-£120,000 /£120,000-
£Above – Similarly, the same range as at May 2011  

Page 8



 Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021 
 
 

 
5 

 

The Leader reported that Officers within the Council were unable to obtain this 
information in advance of the meeting, the information will be provided to 

Councillor Caserta and Members of the Committee, once available. 

 
Question 6: Will the Leader provide the latest spend for all Covid Grants 

received from HMG 

Councillor Caserta 

 
 
The Leader reported that, only the ARG remains open and with funds 
(approximately £1m left) to spend (March 2022 closing date) 
The grand combined total to date is £76,009,958.  The Leader reported that 
further information is available and this will be circulated via email to Councillor 
Caserta. 
 
Question 7: Given the importance of the high street recovery and the 
economic recovery of our borough more generally when will the Council 
engage with businesses to analyse the office space in the borough to 
understand if such space can be used for other means. 

Councillor N Jones  
 
The Leader reported that following the Pandemic that the engagement with the 
world of work has changed, work has been undertaken with Bury Business Leaders 
as well as the GM growth hub to understand and engage with Business to 
understand their requirements going forward. 
 

OSC.7  MEETING THEME *** REGENERATION  
 

The Leader attended the meeting to provide Members with an update with regards 
to the work being undertaken to regenerate the Borough in particular Radcliffe.  
The Leader reported that the regeneration proposals will also support national 
policy objectives relating to the ‘Levelling Up’ agenda. As signalled by the Levelling 
Up Fund (LUF), the Government has a significant commitment for regional growth 
to support ‘levelling up’ across the country.  Bury is ranked as a priority 1 
category area, while Radcliffe has pockets of severe deprivation. 
 

The Leader outline the key deliverables currently being developed which included:  

 Delivery of a new secondary school  

 Creation of a new build civic hub that facilitates public services, 
education and wellness facilities all under one roof  

 Refurbishing and repurposing the historic market chambers and 
Radcliffe Market basement to create commercial retail and F&B space, 
alongside events space for community use and private functions 

 Creation of new employment space, business incubator enterprise 
centre and coworking space  

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021  
 
 

 
6 

 A whole town approach to housing – facilitating the comprehensive 
approach to residential development 

 A programme of strategic investment projects to improve and enhance 
multi- modal transport provision – supporting sustainable future growth 
and active travel  

 
Prior to the meeting the accompanying documentation was circulated to members 
the Benefits Realisation Plan for the Radcliffe Hub and the Radcliffe Transport 
Investment Strategy. 
 
In considering the reports circulated, the Leader’s statement and the site visit that 
took place before the meeting, Member raised the following issues: 
 
Responding to a question from Councillor Birchmore in relation to Radcliffe 
Library, the Leader reported that once the Council are informed of the outcome of 
the levelling up bid, there will be greater financial security, Once confirmed this 
will form the basis of the consultation in regards to the future of the library service 
as well as the swimming pool and the leisure centre.  The Leader reported that 
there was a short timeframe to submit the bid and acknowledged that more 
engagement and consultation will be required with residents going forward.   
 
The Leader reported that one such proposal being developed is a business skills 
and innovation hub, this is at the early stage of development, it is envisaged that 
by working with Barclays this could be a space for residents and small start up 
Companies. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Peel, the Leader reported that traffic 
infrastructure and the transport strategy will be integral to the plans for Radcliffe.  
The Council will continue to engage with TfGM to access additional monies to 
support sustainable modes of public transport and also improve and change how 
people move as well as looking at under utilised assets including the river/canal. 
 
With regards to affordable housing the Leader reported that the Council’s 
approach will be to intervene more directly in housing development, by driving 
development with housing providers, Homes England and Housing Associations. 
Such interventions can ensure that new homes are of a high standards while still 
being affordable as well as offering properties that are affordable to rent, as well 
as rent to buy and shared ownership. 
 
The Leader reported that the cooperative model is under-utilised in Bury and this 
could be developed and applied in Radcliffe.  There has been engagement with the 
MPs with regards to the levelling up bid, the Council will need to ensure that the 
proposed plans and if received, the money makes a real difference to the people 
of Radcliffe.   
 
In response to a question from the Chair, the Leader reported that work 
undertaken in re-developing Radcliffe can shape other redevelopment work across 
the Borough.   
 
Lessons learnt have included, expanding the capacity in the BGI Directorate 
through the recruitment of a Director of Place and that when undertaking this 

Page 10



 Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021 
 
 

 
7 

regeneration work that it can and should be led by the Council while at the same 
time embedding a partnership approach with other key stakeholders. 
 
 
The Leader reported that he remained confident that despite changes in how 
people work the modelling still suggests that there will be capacity for the 
Radcliffe hub.  In relation to the Whittaker Street Building, the Leader reported 
that it was necessary to undertake essential maintenance work.  Going forward 
the Council are considering whether further work needs to be undertaken.  The 
Leader reported that it remains his ambition to retain these staff in Radcliffe, but 
the Council must ensure that its employees are safe and have good working 
conditions. 
 
In response to a Member’s question the Leader reported if the levelling up bid is 
not successful that the Council may need to make difficult choices in relation to 
prioritisation of the proposals.  The plans were designed around the Radcliffe 
Strategic Framework and the Council should still be able to deliver the vast 
majority of this work, if unsuccessful delivery will be much harder and may in turn 
put more pressure on the Council’s borrowing capacity. 
 
Members discussed the proposed new Radcliffe High School and the timeline for 
the development.  The Leader reported that it would be a challenge to open any 
earlier than September 2024 there may however be scope if the work progresses 
on schedule, to allow more than a year 7 cohort in 2024.  The Leader reported 
that there had been early discussions with the Star Academy in relation to look to 
widen the scope of what is on offer strengthening the skills and apprenticeship 
offer. 
 
It was agreed: 
 
The content of the report be noted and Councillor O’Brien be thanked for his 
attendance.   
 

OSC.8  THE COUNCIL'S FINANCIAL POSITION 2021/22 QUARTER 1 (TREASURY 
MANAGEMENT OUTTURN 2020/21)  

 
Councillor Eamonn O’Brien, the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Finance and Growth, presented the report which outlined the forecast financial 
position of the Council at the end of 2021/22 based on the information known at 
the end of the first quarter, 30 June 2021. The report set out the position for both 
revenue and capital and provided an analysis of the variances, both under and 
overspending.  An accompanying Covid spend briefing report and the Treasury 
Management Outturn report were circulated to Members prior to the meeting. 
 
In considering the reports circulated, Member raised the following issues: 
With regards to the £10.25 million not spent in the last financial year, the Leader 
reported that this money was received late in the financial year and was set aside 
for ongoing response to Covid including the containment outbreak management 
fund and Business grants support for business recovery. 
 

Page 11



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021  
 
 

 
8 

The Leader reported that the Council received £79,946,000 to support business in 
the Borough, to date £76 million has been spent.  ARG phase 3 will target those 
business where recovery has been most uneven, for example, the events industry. 
 
The Leader confirmed the statement of accounts are expected to be signed off at 
the end of November, the information was submitted by the Council on time but 
the delay is as a result of capacity issues with the external auditors Mazars. 
 
With regards to the £82,400 set aside to approve customer response, the Leader 
reported that this will be utilised for staffing and additional software/improved 
technology.  This is currently a non-recurring cost, addressing a short term need, 
if successful, Officer would be encouraged to develop a invest to save/invest to 
grow business case. 
 
With regards to the Collection Fund the Leader reported that a Central 
Government rule change now allows, Councils to retain 66% rather than 100% of 
the business rates.  The Q3 financial monitoring report will provide further 
information with regards to business rates including the impact of the changes. 
 
With regards to the increase in reserves from £51.06m to £74.84m the Leader 
reported that this was a result of; an increase payment by the CCG into the 
pooled budget, a review of the collection fund received more than predicated lump 
and headroom of £5.8m for the transformation reserve.  
Going forward it is expected that the reserves will reduce because of pressure on 
the revenue budget and there still remains a significant gaps in the Council finance 
thus placing greater demands on the reserve budget. 
 
It was agreed: 
 
The content of the report be noted and Councillor O’Brien be thanked for his 
attendance.   
 
A Covid monies update report will be considered at a future meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 

OSC.9  UPDATE REPORT ON CHANGES TO REFUSE COLLECTIONS  
 

Councillor Quinn, Cabinet Member Environment Climate Change and Operations 
attended the meeting, following discussions at the last meeting to inform Members 
of the Committee of the progress made to the waste collections since the last 
meeting.  An accompanying report had been circulated to Members prior to the 
meeting which provided details of: 

 Issues identified following the changes to the new rounds 
 Replacement of the waste collection vehicle fleet 
 Workforce Implications 
 Impact of Covid 19 
 Performance 
 Communication 
 Long term modernisation 

 

Page 12



 Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 14 September 2021 
 
 

 
9 

The Cabinet Member reported that the review of new rounds was designed to  
even out the workload and rebalance the distribution of several thousand new 
homes that have been built in the borough; achieve a £150k Council saving 
(reduction of 1 vehicle and crew); optimise the rounds to ensure 2 weekly brown 
bin collections are more efficient and allow for changes in the tonnages of each 
waste stream presented for collection. 
 
In considering the reports circulated, Member raised the following issues: 
 
The Cabinet Member reported that the Council had undertaken a vehicle 
replacement programme there had been delays in some of the new vehicles 
arriving from Germany, these vehicles will be additional vehicles and would 
provide cover and replace existing vehicles.  The Cabinet Member reported that he 
would want to ensure that the staff working in waste management are employed 
by Bury Council and the service is not reliant on agency staff.   
 
The Cabinet member reported that the current rate of missed bin collections is 
now 95%.  Extra staffing capacity has been made available at cost of £28,000.  
 
Responding to a Member’s questions the Cabinet Member reported that he could 
review whether the Council could create an online form for reporting missed bin 
collections.  

The Executive Director reported that the advert for the post of Head of Waste 
Management, on the 14th September 2021.  Changes to the waste management 
rounds were expected to generate £150k savings; it is now envisaged that the 
department will achieve a partial saving this year and all of the identified saving 
next year. 
 
The Cabinet Member reported that he is talking to colleagues in Greater 
Manchester as to how to address the shortage of HGV drivers.  
 
It was agreed: 
 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee forward for consideration at the 
next meeting of the Democratic Arrangements Forum that the Employment 
Appointments Panel should appoint to the Head of Waste Management thus 
amending the constitution. 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR R BERNSTEIN 
Chair  
 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 9.40 pm) 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Member Questions: 
 
  
QUESTION 1: 

1. Councillor Quinn stated at the last meeting that "he is talking to colleagues in 
Greater Manchester as to how to address the shortage of HGV drivers." How did 
those discussions progress, and have the council finalised a plan to address the 
shortage of HGV drivers? 
 
2. Have Bury Council as yet taken delivery of the remaining bin trucks from 
Germany? 
Councillor Rydeheard 
 
 
 
QUESTION 2:  

The third sector are a key partner in supporting the communities across the 
borough. Can the Cabinet Member outline how the Council intends to work with 
the third sector with regards to the great work being carried out by the 
Community Hubs and explain how long they envisage the Community Hubs to be 
in place for. 
Cllr Nick Jones 
 
 

Page 15 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

MEETING: Scutiny 

 

 
 
DATE: 18/11/21 

 
 

 
SUBJECT: Regeneration of the Borough                              

 
 

 
REPORT FROM:Paul Lakin 

 
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Paul Lakin/David Lynch 

 

  

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 Scrutiny committee have requested an overview of the regeneration activity taking place 

across the Borough. 
 

The Council has an ambitious regeneration programme which is designed to boost 
economic activity and participation across the Borough, maximise the use of Council land 
and assets, generate additional tax and commercial incomes and safeguard the future of 
our key town centres. 

 
This is an extensive agenda.  In order to best give an overview to the Committee of the 
activity that is live, a presentation has been attached, this allows for a visual oversight of 
the key current activity.   

 
1.2 At the last meeting of Scruting a site visit to Radcliffe was undertaken to see the sites on 

the ground.  It was agreed that the Chairman of the Radcliffe Regeneration Board would 
update this meeting. 

 
1.3 Given the scale of the regeneration agenda (highlighted in Section 2) it may be that 

Scrutiny determines that it may wish to look in detail at one particular aspect of the 
regeneration programme given the challenges of overseeing this size of agenda.  

 
2.0 ISSUES 

 
The BGI Directorate is leading on the following six major interventions and programmes: 
 

 A £50m mixed-use regeneration programme in a JV with Muse Developments to 

redevelop Prestwich Town Centre 

 A £150m proposal to acquire and redevelop the Millgate Shopping Centre, build a 

£36m Market Flexi-Hall in central Bury and to work with TfGM on a new £80m 

Transport Interchange 

 A £40m ‘Levelling-Up’ proposal for a new Hub building in central Radcliffe 

 A brownfield land programme, delivering 2,000 new homes on 100 acres of Council 

land 

Agenda 

Item  

 

SCRUTINY REPORT   

 

Page 17 Agenda Item 7



 2 

 A land disposal programme to deliver £29m receipts to reinvest in an ‘Estates 

Transformation programme’ which will see a major re-organisation of the local 

authority’s estate 

 The implementation of the Northern Gateway opportunity, the largest release of 

employment land in the north of England (20,000 jobs and 766 acres in Bury) 

 

The cumulative value of this regeneration investment is estimated in the region of £360m, it will 

see the development of 900-acres of land and create 20,000 plus jobs. 

 

The important thing to emphasise in regard to this regeneration programme is that: 

 

a) Most of the major external national regeneration funding has been confirmed in the 

Autumn 2021 budget.  Notably the two ‘Levelling-Up’ proposals and the resources provided 

to TfGM for the new Interchange project.  These rewards are in excess of £100m direct 

Government investment in the Borough. 

 

b)  The brownfield housing programme will be delivered by a range of housing 

development organisations, including registered providers and the commercial sector. The 

Cabinet has already approved disposals to deliver five brownfield housing sites, and 

significant progress is being made on the East Lancashire Paper Mill site.  The investment 

will be made entirely by the private sector/social housing sector, with the Council obtaining 

receipts, affordable housing, new homes bonus, future tax receipts and increased spending 
power in the local economy.  

c) The major town centre proposals for Prestwich and Bury town centre are proposed to be 
delivered in partnership with two of the most active and powerful development 
organisations in the region.  Muse Developments are a part of the Morgan Sindall group, 
are well financed and have extensive experience of delivering schemes in Stockport, 
Salford, Blackpool, Chester and other key regional towns and cities. Bruntwood are one of 
the most powerful and innovative developers in the North West, with extensive experience 
of delivering development in Manchestr, Leeds, Birmingham as well as in districts such as 
Trafford. 
 
d) The estates transformation work has bene underpinned by the ‘Accelerated Land 
Disposal Programme’ which has seen non-strategic properties and buildings disposed of to 
the private sector to enable new development to come forwards.  As the programme steps-
up it will see expensive and outmoded parts of the Council’s estate transferred. This will 
reduce Council running costs and deliver new regeneration, such as new houses on the 
site of Humphrey House and a private sector led-and developed hotel on the site of the 
former Fire Station. Another key aspect of this programme is to improve the performance of 
the commercial estate, deliver on Council held economic land (Chamberhall and Bradley 
Fold) and drive improvements to our investment portfolio. 
 
e) The Northern Gateway site is largely in a single private ownership (obtained through 
strategic land acqusitions and direct ownerships) between development partners Russells 
and Harworth Homes.  Between them these orgainsations have the development skills and 
expertise required to drive a site of this scale, the opportunity for the Council is work 
closely to help ensure the site infrastructure, business investment and local benefit are 
secured form development.  

 
3.0 CONCLUSION 

 

 This scale of regeneration will represent a major challenge for the Authority. 
 

There are significant technical skills and requirements that will be placed in 
particular on the BGI Directorate to ensure delivery. 

 

Page 18



 3 

However, there are significant opportunities in terms of creating jobs, economic 
prosperity, thriving town centres and future revenues to support the Council. 
 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

List of Background Papers:- 

 

Presentation attached 
 
 
Contact Details:- 

 

Paul Lakin 
 
Executive Director sign off Date:10/11/21 

 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Presented by:

Paul Lakin
Director of Regeneration

p.lakin@bury.gov.uk

David Lynch
Assistant Director Regeneration 

d.lynch@bury.gov.uk

Bury Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
18th November 2021

Business Growth & Infrastructure

P
age 21

mailto:p.lakin@bury.gov.uk
mailto:d.lynch@bury.gov.uk


Prestwich

P
age 22



P
age 23



P
age 24



P
age 25



Joint Venture with Muse Developments

c.240 new homes

Mix of tenures & typologies

Planning submission Spring 2022

P
age 26



Whitefield

P
age 27



Wheatfields Centre 

Whitefield 

P
age 28



P
age 29



30 affordable homes

Mix of shared ownership & affordable rent

Family orientated townhouses

Downsizer bungalows 

Accessible apartments

Planning submission Dec 2021

Start on site in 2022

P
age 30



Uplands

Whitefield 

P
age 31



Health & Wellbeing Centre 

Replacement for the Uplands Medical Practice.

Replacement for the Elms Medical Practice.

Northern Care Alliance (NCA) NHS Group facilities to deliver Baby Clinics, Wound 
Management Clinics, an office base for the Integrated Neighbourhood Team (INT) and the 

borough wide Diabetes Service

New community pharmacy

Planning submission 2022

P
age 32



Radcliffe

P
age 33



Radcliffe SRF P
age 34



Key Regeneration programme for Bury 

Council

New Civic Hub

Replacement leisure facilities

New secondary school

1000 brownfield homes

Coworking space

Events Hall

Enterprise Centre

Council acquisition of Dale St & Blackburn 

Street properties May 2021

Radcliffe SRF P
age 35



Council acquired the London & 

Associated Properties PLC 

ownership of the town centre 

commercial properties on Dale 

and Blackburn Street.

This provides a development 

site to deliver the hub and 

unlock the regeneration 

programme.

Radcliffe SRF P
age 36



P
age 37



P
age 38



P
age 39



School Street

Radcliffe 

P
age 40



P
age 41



P
age 42



P
age 43



89 new homes

Mix of 3 & 4 bedroom family homes

25% affordable shared ownership

Council homes 

Planning submission December 2021

Start on site 2022

P
age 44



Green Street

Radcliffe 

P
age 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



136 new homes

Mix of 1 & 2 bedroom apartments

75% affordable shared ownership

Planning submission December 2021

Start on site TBC 2022

P
age 48



East Lancs Paper Mill

Radcliffe 

P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



Phase 1: 25 Affordable Homes

Phase 2: 400 new homes 

(25% – 50% affordable)

Homes England DPP3 tender concludes 2021

P
age 52



New secondary school 

Development land agreed with DFE

Star Academies appointed to deliver 

secondary school at Coney Green

Planning submission 2022

First intake September 2024

P
age 53



Bury Town Centre

P
age 54



Proposals to develop site to 

include 30,000 sqft flexible 

events hall.

In May we submitted a £40m 

Levelling Up Bid for proposals 

for investment into the 

market, public realm and 

replacement market building 

canopy

Bury Market P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



Council submitted £40m Levelling Up Bid

P
age 60



Chamber hall business park

Phase 1 technology park complete

Phase 2 tender live focus on science + research

P
age 61



Fire Station Hotel

Cabinet approved former Fire Station to be redeveloped into a 130-bed hotel

P
age 62



Bury Interchange

£45 multimodal interchange
new entrance to town centre
tramtrain via Heywood
cycle hub   

P
age 63



Town Centre Masterplan
P

age 64



Town Centre Masterplan
P

age 65



Town Centre Masterplan
P

age 66



P
age 67



Former Police Station

Bury town centre 

P
age 68



Humphrey House

Bury town centre 

P
age 69



Townside sites

Bury town centre 

P
age 70



Townside sites

Bury town centre 

P
age 71



P
age 72



Ramsbottom

P
age 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



P
age 78



P
age 79



Market Chambers
P

age 80



Central Street
P

age 81



New Summerseat House
P

age 82



Mondi Paper Mill
P

age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 

 
 

 

 
MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 

 
DATE: 18 November 2021 

 
 

 
SUBJECT: Housing Update  

 
 

 
REPORT FROM: Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member for Housing Services 

 
 

  
 

  

 
1.0 Background  
 
In May 2021 the Council adopted a new Housing Strategy for the next ten years, 
which sets out clear objectives to deliver: 
 

 More, high-quality and low-carbon homes in the Borough. 
 More affordable homes, to help get people on the housing ladder. 
 A more dynamic housing market, with a broader range of housing tenures 

and more tailored support for people.  
 A housing strategy for every township, shaped by development and 

regeneration plans to support the future of each town centre and 
neighbourhood.  

 Additional support that enables people to live healthily and well in their own 
community long into later life. 

 An approach to eliminate rough sleeping by 2025, by helping homeless 
people achieve financial independence. 

 
This report provides an update on the work related to homelessness and eliminating 
rough sleeping, including: 
 

 Homeless prevention and tenancy sustainment. 

 Homeless response. 

 Non statutory support for rough sleepers. 
 Asylum dispersal including current work to support Afghan refugees. 

Delivering these priorities is achieved through: 
 

 The Council’s Homelessness and Housing Options service  

 A Performance and Policy Officer. 

 The Council’s Arm’s Length Management Organisation (ALMO), Six Town 

Housing (STH). 

 A network of approximately 17 Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) operating 

in the Borough. 

 Serco, who hold the national contract for asylum dispersal. 
 Urban Renewal who manage relationships with the private sector. 

 

Agenda 

Item  

 

SCRUTINY REPORT   

 

Page 85 Agenda Item 8



 2 

Substantively this portfolio is within the Business Growth and Infrastructure 
department under the leadership of the Assistant Director Housing. This post has, 
however, been long term vacant. The service has therefore been managed by the 
Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Core) since 2019. 
 
2.0  Context 
 
Demand on Council housing services including statutory homelessness and rough 
sleeping has been increasing since the Homeless Reduction Act 2017 and more 
recently due to the impact of Covid-19 and the “Everyone in” initiative.  Over the last 
12 months demand for statutory services in Bury has increased by around 30% and 
the number of rough sleepers has more than doubled. 
 
The increase in demand in Bury is a national issue and the proportion of pressure 
experienced locally is consistent with other boroughs. The reason for this increase 
includes: 

 
 The impact of complex lives which can result in an inability to sustain 

mortgage payments or a rented tenancy. The majority of homeless people 
have experienced some combination of financial, emotional, health or 
substance abuse.  

 The lifting of the Covid eviction ban which was imposed as part of the 
“everyone in” initiative and relaxation of wider restrictions. 

 The lack of available move-on property because of the short housing supply 
in Bury means people are staying longer in emergency accommodation, 
which limits availability for others. The average length of stay in emergency 
accommodation is currently 82 days. 

 
The Council has led significant work across housing partners to respond to this 
context, which is described within this report. 

 
3.0 The Homeless Strategy - Prevention 

 
The Homeless Reduction Act 2017 requires local authorities to take a preventative 
approach to homelessness through a multi-agency approach; this is delivered in Bury 
through an independent Homelessness partnership comprised of community leaders; 
service users; the Council and Six Town Housing. 
 
The Council supports the work of the Partnership by co-producing a Homeless 
Strategy to guide its work.  The strategy currently comprises seven key priorities and 
themes: 
 

 Prevention 
 Person 
 Property 
 Promote 
 Purpose 
 Place 
 Partnership 

 
The strategy is delivered through an underpinning action plan, key activities within 
which include: 
 

 Specific awareness raising for young people around homelessness 

 Promoting life skills and managing debt in schools and colleges 

 Early tenancy sustainment support for people at risk of homelessness 

Page 86



 3 

 Performance and data measured correctly for local needs, as well as national 

and regional insight to align resources.  

 Prevent people being discharged from hospital before housing options in place. 

 Resolutions to the challenges created by welfare reform. 

 Strengthening Private Rented Sector (PRS) landlord support, advice and 

assistance to avoid S21 notices and evictions  

 A clear plan to be ready for people - ‘in-reach”’ prevention work (how to 

manage a tenancy) with prisons / prison liaison 

 Training offers for all frontline staff to address barriers to housing, including 

debt management.  

 Ensuring that the Asylum and Refugee community are given early housing 

options and support. 

 Partnership approach with all stakeholders to help prevent homelessness and 

improve resources and capacity. 

 
The strategy is currently under review and a refreshed strategy for the next three 
years will be proposed by the end of the 2021 calendar year.  The updated strategy 
will, in particular, be strengthened to reflect the Let’s do it! ethos, including though: 

 
 Supporting people to take an asset-based approach to access the resources 

that will allow them to stay in housing. 
 Establishing housing professionals within local public service neighbourhood 

teams, to ensure joined up multi-disciplinary support through a key worker 
approach. It is well understood that the principal causes of homelessness are 
social and economic and, through these teams, support to professionals in the 
areas of substance misuse, domestic abuse and work and skills will be 
expedited. 

 A new focus on engagement with landlords within the private rented sector to 
help them better understand the causes of homelessness. 
 

3.1 Tenancy Sustainment 
 
The Council and Six Town Housing (STH) are working together on the refresh of the 
tenancy sustainment strategy. The strategy will provide clear strategic direction, 
outcomes and expectations in how partners seek to sustain tenancies and 
accommodation to better to prevent homelessness.  The Strategy will be designed for 
application within Council housing stock in the first instance, but with engagement 
from landlords in the private rented sector to broaden its potential application.   
 
The sustainment strategy will define partnership arrangements for identifying and 
supporting people at risk of eviction and the eviction process itself, should that 
ultimately occur.  More fundamentally, however, it will seek to define how public 
services identify and proactively support people with complex lives who, as a result, 
may be at risk of tenancy failure.  This includes residents experiencing domestic 
abuse, for example, or affected by anti-social behaviour; financial deprivation or 
substance misuse 
 
The strategy will focus on supporting the ‘person’ not the ‘property’ to break the cycle 
of homelessness for many complex and high need residents. The intention is to use 
the neighbourhood model to bring together all public services in a place to share 
insight; stratify risk and proactively intervene in high-risk situations.  A task and 
finish group has been established to progress this work, led by STH and involving key 
partners including the Council’s Adult and children Services, DWP, Health services, 
Housing Associations and GMP.  
 

Page 87



 4 

3.2 Statutory homeless response 
 

On average the Council receives around 300 homeless self-referrals / new cases per 
month (a 300% increase from before Covid 19) and 80+ “duty to refer” cases each 
month.  In response, the Council Homelessness and Housing Options team: 

 manages 90 properties to meet the statutory duty which is a mix of dispersed 
houses, maisonettes and flats. This portfolio provides a total of 320 bed spaces 
when at full capacity 

 provides wider, personal support and facilitates outreach to people who need to 
access emergency accommodation 

 seeks to move people into more sustainable accommodation as quickly as 
possible. 

 
In addition to fulfilling the Council’s statutory duties in relation to people who are 
homeless or at risk of homelessness, the team also provide specialist support to 
particular vulnerable cohorts including: 

 

 Victims of domestic abuse (DA). As part of a recent review of DA arrangements 

and the development of a new strategy, the provision of specialist housing for 

singles of both genders and families is being arranged. 

 Council Care Leavers through a long-standing arrangement to provide priority 

support to Looked After Children in order that these children become 

independent at the point of adult hood. As part of the Childrens and Young 

Persons improvement plan, arrangements for care leavers are currently under 

review. 

 Asylum and Immigration support and services to refugees and asylum seekers 

through pathways with Serco and the Home Office.  
 

The Homelessness and Housing Options team has recently been restructured to 
ensure staffing and property resources are maximised to respond to demand 
pressures. A saving of £250,000 from this restructure was also contributed to the 
council’s budget. 

 
3.3 Support to rough sleepers 

 
The Council has recorded a 455% increase in rough sleeper numbers over the past 12 
months and a 1300% increase since 2018/19. The current number of recorded rough 
sleepers is 40 in our supported accommodation via A Bed for Every Night (ABEN) and 
Stepping Stones emergency accommodation with a further 4 rough sleepers 
supported in longer term move on accommodation. Due to the success of the above 
new provision and funding we currently have only 1 known rough sleeper actually on 
the streets, with whom the outreach service are working closely with to engage and 
move into appropriate supported accommodation. 
 
The Council does not have a statutory role in supporting or accommodating rough 
sleepers but, over recent years, has received extra funding to respond through: 

 
 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s ‘A Bed Every Night initiative’.  
 The government’s Rough Sleeper Initiative (RSi) and Rough sleeper 

accommodation programme (RSAP). 
 
Funding has been invested in a commissioned provision through an independent 
partner, Stepping Stones, to provide 15 bed spaces plus support to make emergency 
provision. Greater Manchester Combined Authority funding for A Bed for Every Night 
also provides a further 25 supported bed spaces for a total of 40 individual 
accommodation units with support 

Page 88



 5 

The team has been very successful in moving rough sleepers into more secure, 
longer-term accommodation, despite the increase in caseloads. Longer term strategic 
responses are also being developed through the Bury Homeless Partnership including 
the establishment of an Ethical Lettings Agency via the Greater Manchester Let Us 
scheme with 2 properties specifically designated for our rough sleepers with more in 
the pipeline for the future  
 
3.4 Asylum dispersal, including Afghan resettlement 
 
Demand and funding for asylum and immigration support has generally reduced in 
recent years. The Council typically supports the dispersal of around 40 families each 
year, through Serco. In Bury this is a challenge in the context of the scale of statutory 
demand as described and the shortage of housing supply which means the private 
rented sector is similarly at full capacity.  Serco currently have 139 dispersed 
properties in the Private rented sector supporting 450+ asylum seekers and refugees. 
 
The Council does, however, receive national direction to assist in priority 
resettlement.  For example the Hong Kong UK Welcome Programme and the current 
Afghan crisis. In these situations the Council: 

 
 Engages with Serco and the network of Registered Social Landlords. 
 Accesses its own supported housing portfolio. 
 Engages with other Council departments and agencies to provide wider 

resettlement support, in particular health care and schools.  
 

Bury Council has managed to facilitate an offer of ten houses (sufficient for 30-40 
people) to assist in the current Afghan crisis. This provision will be made through the 
commissioned sector, which protects council stock for statutory duties. The response 
and allocation is being co-ordinated at Greater Manchester level. A meeting with 
community leaders is being arranged to discuss how we welcome Afghan people into 
Bury and to ensure multi-agency support is in place. The first of the families matched 
to the accommodation by the Home office should arrive in Bury during the week 
commencing the 15th November and plans are in place to provide them with a warm 
welcome with co-ordinated support and assistance by all stakeholders across all 
sectors and partners. 

 
4.0 Future strategy and innovation 
 
The Housing team are active in continually securing funding to explore new delivery 
models and maximise support for vulnerable people.   
 
At present, a total in excess of £1.3m extra short-term funding has been secured via 
successful bids since April 21. This supports 5 short term initiatives which are 
benefitting vulnerable people. These initiatives and extra funding enable the Council 
to provide:-  
 

 rough sleeper outreach service  
 emergency and longer term supported accommodation for our rough sleepers  
 accommodation for prison releases that are homeless on release  
 funding private rented sector initiatives and deposits with landlords.  

 
The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (formerly MHCLG - 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government) have recently provided 
further homeless prevention funding to support specifically vulnerable renters in the 
private rented sector that were impacted as a result of Covid and the consequences of 
the lifting of the eviction ban earlier this year. The neighbourhood teams described in 

Page 89



 6 

this document, including an embedded housing lead, will take responsibility for 
identifying vulnerable people who would benefit from this short term financial 
assistance and ensuring they are connected to longer term sustainability advice and 
support. 

 
5.0 Conclusion 

 
Homeless prevention is one of the central objectives of the borough’s housing 
strategy. However, the wider pressures of the housing market in Bury, which the 
strategy seeks to address, compound this challenge. Despite this, the team have a 
strong track record of maximising funding opportunities and engaging with partners 
to secure resilience. 

 
Feedback from the Overview and Scrutiny committee is welcome including, for 
example, how: 
 

 homeless prevention is aligned to the principles and priorities within the 
borough strategy, Let’s do it. 

 asylum seekers, including Afghans, are welcomed to the borough. 
 the Council maximises its relationship with partners, including our Arms Length 

Management Organisation, Six Town Housing, to sustain and prevent 
homelessness and extend support to the vulnerable. 

 
 
 

 
List of Background Papers:- None. 
 
 
Contact Details:- 
 
Phil Cole, Head of Homelessness & Housing Options 
 
Executive Director sign off: Lynne Ridsdale_____________ 
 

Page 90



1 
 

Housing Report 

Appendix 1 – Housing Portfolio Update  

This paper defines the housing portfolio priorities for 2021/22, together with a 
brief summary of progress to date. 

Housing Portfolio Priorities 2021/22 (in association with the Housing Strategy 
Action Plan):  

 Provision of affordable housing through the Council’s Brownfield Land 
Disposal Programme 
 

 Empty Property Strategy 
 

 Sheltered Housing Review 
 

 Homeless Strategy 
 

 Development of a Homeless Hub 
 

 Redevelopment of Fernhill gypsy and traveller site 
 

Progress update  

Delivery of the Council’s Brownfield Land Disposal Programme is underway to 

help increase the number of homes in the borough, including affordable homes 

across a range of tenures, with provision for older people and specialist groups 
including those with a learning disability. 

Housing action plans are being drafted for each township to support wider 

regeneration plans, township strategies and neighbourhoods. 

A new Empty Property Strategy is being developed to help tackle the problem of 

empty properties in the borough, maximise re-use of existing stock, address the 

negative impact on local communities and help improve standards in the private 
rented sector. 

A review of four sheltered housing schemes and housing related support services 

is currently underway, to help improve the housing offer for older people. The 

four schemes are: 

 Clarkshill, Prestwich 
 Harwood House, Tottington 
 Mosses House, Bury 
 Taylor House, Brandlesholme   

 
A Stock Condition Survey is underway to assess the condition of the Council’s 

housing stock (includes eco assessments). The findings will confirm ‘Decent 
Homes Standard’ compliance, reveal any defects/damage that needs attention or 

future repairs as well as potential health and safety issues. This will enable asset 

management records and energy performance ratings to be updated. 

Page 91



2 
 

Market position statements are being established to determine the future needs 

of older people and people with long-term conditions including learning 

disabilities, mental health and autism. Action planning to follow. 

A Homeless Strategy is being progressed to help reduce the need for rough 

sleeping and homelessness. A Tenancy Sustainment Strategy is also being 

developed to support tenants to maintain their tenancies and minimise tenancy 

breakdown. 

A business case is currently being established for a homeless hub in the 

borough, which will provide additional emergency accommodation for people 

who are homeless. 

Redevelopment of Fernhill gypsy and traveller site is underway. The proposed 

new site will benefit from new amenities which will significantly improve the lives 
of residents. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 92



 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting:  CABINET 

Meeting date:  13 October 2021 

Title of report:  LGA Corporate Peer Challenge Feedback 

Report by:  Councillor Tahir Rafiq, Cabinet Member for Corporate Affairs 

& HR 

Decision Type:  

Ward(s) to 
which report 
relates 

All 

  

Executive Summary:   
 
In November 2018 Bury Council benefitted from a comprehensive Corporate Peer 
Challenge review undertaken by the Local Government Association (LGA), from which a 

number of recommendations for improvement were made and responded to. 
 

In summer 2021 the Council received a Corporate Peer Challenge Revisit, the purpose of 
which was to assess the progress made against the recommendations identified during 
the original peer challenge and the impact this has had. 

 
This report summarises feedback received from the LGA team and the Council’s 

proposed action plan in response. These relate to: 
 

 Considering the number of competing pressures and priorities now facing the 

Council, prioritise again those objectives and actions which are the most critical 
corporately 

 Clearly set out and agree the approach and strategy for organisational 
development that senior leaders can then consistently champion 

 Give focus to consistently ‘getting the basics right’ which will help increase the 
amount of capacity the Council can put towards the transformation ambitions, 
delivery of saving requirements and the corporate priorities 

 Continue to improve the performance management and business intelligence 
function and consider where further structural alignment of those in these roles is 

needed 

Classification 
 
Open  

Item No. 

Page 93 Agenda Item 9



 

 Completing the planned structural review of the finance function 

 Co-design the actions required to achieving the priorities under the 2030 vision 

 Work with others to co-design the Community Engagement Strategy 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 

The Cabinet is asked to: 
  

 Note the feedback from the LGA team 
 Endorse the “3R” Framework to inform prioritisation 

 Endorse the proposed action plan 

 

Key considerations  
 

1 Introduction 

 
In November 2018 Bury Council benefitted from a comprehensive Corporate Peer 

Challenge review by the Local Government Association (LGA), from which a number of 
recommendations for improvement were made and responded to.   

 
In summer 2021 the Council received a Corporate Peer Challenge Revisit, the purpose of 
which was to assess the progress made against the recommendations identified during 

the original peer challenge and the impact this has had.  
  

This report summarises feedback received from the LGA team and the Council’s 
proposed action plan in response. 
 

2 The 2018 Corporate Peer Challenge Findings 

 

In 2018 Bury Council benefitted from a comprehensive Corporate Peer Challenge review. 
This involved an experienced team of peers from across the local government sector 
spending a number of days on site to interview key stakeholders and review 

documentation, including the Council’s self-assessment.   
 

The 2018 report recommended that the Council take a number of actions including: 
 

 Develop a new Corporate Plan which states the priorities for the next three years; 

 Strengthen financial management and discipline; 

 Co-produce, then consistently live a new workforce culture, reflecting the cultural 

requirements of a new ‘integrated’ organisation and empower all to meet the level 
of sustainable corporate transformation required; 

 Centralise relevant support and enabling services into a strong ‘corporate core’; 

 Develop and deliver a single, comprehensive corporate performance 

management framework; 

 Councillors and officers to co-design a considered, deliverable commercialisation 
strategy; 

Page 94



 

 Invest in ICT infrastructure in its entirety (hardware, software, connectivity and 

training) based on clear business cases. Also to define the Council’s digital 
journey and the steps that will need to be taken to deliver it; 

 Refresh the approach to community engagement and look at how the resourcing 
of the voluntary, community and faith sector could have a greater impact on local 
priorities; 

 Review organisational workforce development; 

 Review the role of the strategic ‘Team Bury’ partnership, the outcomes it can 

deliver for Bury and the governance arrangements required to do this.  
 

3 The 2021 LGA Revisit 

 
In summer 2021 the LGA made a follow up visit to Bury. The revisit  was essentially a 

scaled back, focussed version of the full peer challenge. It involved a multi -disciplinary 
team spending 3 days on site to review key documentation, including a refresh of the 

Council’s self-assessment, and to conduct meetings with a range of stakeholders. 
 
3.1 Bury Council Self-assessment – Progress since 2018 

 
The Council’s self-assessment, appended, demonstrates that strong action has been 

taken to respond to each of the LGA’s recommendations with the exception of the 
development of a commercialisation strategy. The self-assessment also makes the point 
that this improvement work has been delivered at the same time that the Council has had 

to respond to the unprecedented challenges of the Covid-19 pandemic.   
 

Progress includes: 
 

 Leading the development of ‘Let’s Do It’ – the Strategy for the borough until 2030 

– together with other related strategies including an initial Covid-19 recovery 
strategy; refresh of the Locality Plan for Health and Social Care; a borough 

housing strategy; corporate plan and MTFS. The Community Safety Plan will be 
refreshed during this calendar year. 
Let’s do it! is a proposition for a new relationship between public services and 

local people based on meaningful engagement and co-design. The strategy was 
co-produced with Team Bury partners and designed to drive the partnership 

through a distributed work plan 

 A more stable and resilient ICT infrastructure  through the upgrade of servers; roll 

out of new devices; M365 implementation and a cloud migration strategy 
underway 

 Delivery of the first two stages of the adopted model of organisation development 

(“Form” and “perform”) and a clear plan for the third stage: “Transform”, as 
follows: 

Form: 
o A strengthened organisation structure is almost fully appointed to, including 

a Joint Executive Team across the Council and CCG 

o New areas of expertise have been invested in, such as organisation 
development; strategic finance and public service reform, as well as a 

number of joint roles between the Council and the CCG 

Page 95



 

o Council and CCG functions have now been integrated operationally and 

strategically as far as possible. The Chief Executive/Accountable Officer; 
Joint Executive Director Finance and Joint Executive Director Strategic 

Commissioning are all joint posts and the whole team leads across both 
organisations 

o The Corporate Core, recommended within the 2018 LGA report, is now 

established 
Perform:  

o Governance has been strengthened including a new Council constitution; 
procurement regulations and inclusion strategy 

o A strengthened, integrated, performance framework is in place across the 

Council and CCG; at a place-based level and with joint KPIs to drive 
internal performance reporting 

o The Council’s strategic finance framework has been fundamentally 
refreshed including a new strategy for reserves and updated Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

Transform 
o A multi year transformation strategy has now been approved by the 

Council’s Cabinet. This strategy will contribute c£5m to the Council’s 
budget savings strategy and will deliver operational improvement across a 
breadth of corporate processes.  Included within the strategy is a defined 

investment case which is provided for from a financial reserve allocated 
within the Council’s 2021/22 budget. 

 

Looking forward, the following key challenges are recognised: 
 

 The NHS White Paper of March 2021 has signalled a shift in the focus of the 
health and care system and signals the end of CCGs from 31/3/22 to be replaced 

by a GM Integrated Care System operating across Greater Manchester and in 
each of the 10 places.  This is an opportunity to further local progress on place-
based leadership but does present a series of practical changes to deliver through 

governance and delivery. 

 Delivery of the MTFS will be challenging, given the significant risk around the 

council’s financial position in the medium term. A requirement for c£20m savings 
by 2024/25 has been identified in order to maintain a balanced budget. 

 Delivery of the Let’s Do It! Vision will require particular leadership from the Council 

on health and care integration; public service reform including community 
engagement; economic development and climate change. 

 There is considerable work now required to move regeneration strategies into 
delivery including economic, infrastructure and community development strategies 

across our major sites in Prestwich, Radcliffe and Bury Town Centre. 

 The new performance framework will inform increasingly evidence-based 
decisions including a focus on improvement of operational services such as waste 

collection and highways repairs. 
 

3.2 LGA Feedback 
 
The LGA have produced a comprehensive report setting out their findings and 

recommendations. The headline of this report is affirmation that the Council has delivered 

Page 96



 

the majority of recommendations made in 2018 and as a result “This peer challenge has 

been able to observe how in many ways, Bury has become a different Council to what it 
was in 2018”. The review also acknowledges progress made beyond the original 

recommendations including in the areas of strategic regeneration, strategic alignment 
with the CCG and in responding well to the demands of Covid-19. The Peer Team have, 
however, observed that: 

 

 Responding to all of these demands has been tough. Capacity remains stretched and 

the Council must get better at prioritising. 

 A further significant budget challenge must be faced between now and 2024/25.  

 Key to achieving the next set of priorities is getting to a point where the Council is 

‘consistently better at the basics’. This includes internal processes and support, as 
well as the outward facing services experienced by local residents and partners. 

Doing so will free up capacity and support the alignment between the capacity to 
deliver and the local priorities. 

 Significantly accelerating the work required in terms of organisational development 
now has a much more pressing role than was the case in 2018 

 

The team made seven strategic recommendations to help the Council respond to the 
issues identified. 
 
4 Recommendations and proposed action plan 
 

Key recommendations from the LGA Team and the Council’s proposed response, which 
will be reflected in the next update to the Corporate Plan, are as follows: 

 
4.1 In light of the number of competing priorities now facing the Council, 

prioritise again those objectives and actions which are the most critical 

corporately.  

 

The Corporate Plan provides a single view of all the strategic priorities in Bury Council 
(and CCG) and a basis for reviewing the totality of demand across the organisations. 
Over the summer the Cabinet has reviewed its priorities and determined three areas of 

focus for all delivery and 15 priorities within this: 
 

 Response (to the ongoing emergency) 

 Recovery, and 

 Renewal through an ambitious borough-wide emergency recovery strategy 
 

The framework provides a lens through which work plans may be assessed to confirm 

congruence with overall strategy. Each priority within the Corporate Plan has been 
mapped against this framework and any new demand will be similarly assessed for 

strategic fit. The framework is summarised below, as a basis for formal endorsement. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 97



 

3 Strategic Themes with 15 Priorities 

LET’S DO It! 
Response Recovery Renewal 

Deploy our Local Outbreak 
Management Plan including 
achieving a 80% vaccination 
uptake for eligible residents in 
Borough 

New Poverty Reduction Plan 
focused on community wealth 
building and implementation of 
the Real Living Wage 

Celebrate together as the Town of Culture 
for 2021 and launch a new cultural 
strategy for the Borough 

Mitigate the impact on children and 
young people through improving 
safeguarding, 
support and access to education 

Deliver the Safety Valve work to 
strengthen SEND, EHCP offer 
and DSG Grant spend. Review 
transition arrangements for 
2020-22 

Prepare the framework for a new Skills 
Strategy inclusive of Schools, FE, HE and 
Community Learning 

Visible leadership of the Borough’s 
For Each Other approach to the 
unlock roadmap 

Improved Operational Services 
including waste collection, a 
reduction in fly tipping, 
improved highways and second 
MOT test centre 

Develop and implement the first phase of 
our Climate Change Action Plan to be 
carbon neutral by 2038 

Continued support for health and 
care with a focus on mental health 
and managing demand across the 
system 

Transforming health and care to 
ensure readiness for winter 
including urgent care, 
population health and 
community services 

Neighbourhood model operational 
including Community Hubs, Health & Care, 
Children’s and wider public services 

Targeted enterprise support for our 
businesses and traders through 
emergency response funds, national 
grants and other 

developments 

Implementation of the 
Brownfield Housing 
Land Programme and a focus on 
housing 

standards in social housing or 
private rented housing 

Deliver the Strategic Regeneration 
Frameworks for our neighbourhoods and 
implement the Action Plans from each 

 

4.2 Clearly set out and agree the approach and strategy for organisational 
development that senior leaders can then consistently champion.  

 
The Council has been underway with a multi year organisation development (OD) 
strategy since 2018.  The adopted model of “Form; Perform; Transform” has been used 

to establish foundational improvement.  The focus over the last two years has been to 
create the structures, systems, processes and resources for improvement, as a basis for 

more fundamental transformation.  The transformation strategy for which these conditions 
now allow was agreed in July 2021 and includes the workstreams of Let’s Do It …: 
 

 Well 

 Once 

 Flexibly 
 

In recognition of the expertise required to take forward the OD strategy a new post was 
created and appointed to earlier this last year, the Director of People and Inclusion. This 
post is accountable for bringing the expertise and capacity required to further an agenda 

around culture change and behaviours.  Key deliverables which will be brought together 
into an overarching new “People Strategy” within the remit of the internal transformation 

programme are as follows: 

Page 98



 

August – December 2021 

 Pay & Grading review (Part 1)  

 HR Policy Handbook and Exec Development 

 Behaviours and values design  
January – June 2022 

 Emphasis on absence, casework and Performance and Development Reviews 

 Organisation design principles agreed  

 People Strategy agreed 

 Leadership development and transactional improvements  

 Behaviour and culture programme 
July 2023 – March 2022 

 Full job evaluation and organisation design review 

 Leadership development and transactional improvements 

 Behaviour and culture programme 
 
4.3 Give focus to consistently ‘getting the basics right’ which will help increase 

the amount of capacity the Council can put towards the transformation 
ambitions, delivery of saving requirements and the corporate priorities.  

 

The remit of this feedback exercise was internal, corporate processes only.  In that 
context the review acknowledges the progress that has been made in responding 

to previous recommendations, including to establish a Corporate Core and the 
considerable investment and improvement in critical functions including ICT, HR, 
Performance and Intelligence. 

 
The review did, however, identify the ongoing scale of improvement still required to 

optimise corporate delivery.  The specific recommendation to better support the user 
experience is recognised, including risk management, customer services, internal 
audit, complaints monitoring, tracking of member enquiries, HR processes and 

support for procurement.  Improvement work across the majority of these functions 
is within the scope of the “Let’s Do It … Well” transformation programme however, 

to better understand the basis for the recommendation: 
 

 Further engagement will be planned with internal and external users, to 

inform a plan and prioritise resources accordingly. This will include the 
engagement of internal self-appointed “change agents” who have been 

developed to provide a staff voice to senior management over the past 12 
months, including a subgroup specifically focussed on support to the Let’s 
Do It …Well programme 

 A “mystery shopper” exercise will be undertaken and repeated regularly by 
the Corporate Core Management Team to maintain an understanding of the 

user experience. 
 
4.4 Continue to improve performance management and consider where further 

structural alignment of those in these functions is needed. 
 

The Council has invested in an expanded performance and intelligence team over 
the last 2 years and the function is now within the corporate core. The team has 

Page 99



 

demonstrated its value throughout the Covid-19 response through the production of 

a daily data dashboard for use at Gold (strategic) level, production of frequent, high 
quality data returns at regional and national level and the production of an 

inequalities index to inform longer term response and recovery plans.  The team 
also provides quarterly “business as usual” performance reports and the data insight 
to inform the Let’s do it! Strategy and underpinning departmental work including the 

safety Valve analysis and health and Care Locality Plan. 
 

There is now a need to direct this capacity to support the Council and CCG to make 
more evidence-based decisions within business planning which, in turn, should 
inform organisational priorities. The ability to be able to support all areas of the 

organisation sufficiently is to some extent limited by the capacity of the current 
structure, however investment in new technologies and ways of working will help to 

continue to improve the approach. This need for further development of the 
Performance and Business Intelligence function was recognised within the 
Transformation Strategy following analysis commissioned from an independent 

partner, Ameo. Within this work the insufficiency of current resources to meet the 
corporate vision was highlighted however it was also recognised that there may be 

analytical capacity embedded in service areas which could be brought together to 
strengthen the current corporate team.  
The recommendation to pursue further structural alignment of related staffing 

resources which may remain departmentally is welcomed and will be pursued. In 
parallel an ambitious data management strategy will be led through the digital 
workstream to ensure that the team has the tools and techniques to maximise the 

value of data held by both organisations.  
 
4.5 Completing the planned structural review of the finance function will help to 

shift support for managers and budget holders more towards a business 
partner model. 

 

Over the past two years the Council has invested significantly in strategic finance 

delivery including the development of a new multi-year Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) including reserves and capital strategies and a refresh of the 
Dedicated Schools Grant through support to the Safety Valve project.  The team 

has, however, experienced some turnover at leadership level and it is acknowledged 
that investment in the strategic agenda has been to the detriment of staff resource 

planning. 
 
It is therefore acknowledged that the planned finance structure review is very 

overdue. Work is, however, now underway now on a revised structure which will be 
brought forward as a basis for consultation shortly. 

 
4.6 Building on the progress made to develop a 2030 vision for Bury and 

building of relationships with partners, co-design the actions required to 

achieving the priorities under the 2030 vision. 

 

The Let’s Do It! vision and priorities for 2020 – 2022 were co-designed with 
partners through the Team Bury partnership.  Partners are engaged in delivery 
through the active leadership of the Team Bury network including monthly 

Page 100



 

meetings of all public service leaders; a new Strategic Leaders network at non-

executive level, chaired by the Leader of the Council and work within and outside 
of statutory committees such as the Bury Community Safety Partnership. 

 
The feedback that not all partners yet feel they align with the vision or feel they are 
clear about their role in delivery is helpful and is already being addressed through 

a different leadership approach which involves the Council: 
 

 Taking specific proposals to partners for their comment and development, 
to target involvement. For example, the Bury Business Leaders’ Group 
informed the final approach to Covid-19 emergency business grant design. 

 Allocation of system-wide leads for actions within an agreed framework. 
For example, the Team Bury partnership agreed the adoption of the CLES 

Community Wealth Building strategy as part of the approach to driving 
inclusive growth.  The framework includes five component parts which, 
through facilitation by the Council, have been allocated across the Bury 

partnership to achieve distributed ownership and delivery. 
 

The Council will continue to evaluate this more structured but collegiate approach 
to sharing ownership. 
 

It has been agreed that an annual “State of the Borough” report and corresponding 
priorities for delivery in the year ahead will be produced at the end of each 

calendar year.  Partners will be engaged in the production of the 2021/22 report 
and associated action plan, to secure more distributed leadership as described 
above. 

 
4.7 Work with others to co-design the Community Engagement Strategy. Embed 

the cultural and workforce requirements of this within the organisational 
development programme.  

 

At the heart of the Let’s Do It! strategy is a commitment to a new relationship with 
residents, based on co-design and meaningful engagement between residents, 

communities (of place and identity) and public services.  In support of this 
objective the Corporate Plan includes a commitment to produce a Community 
Engagement strategy. The strategy is in development and will propose the tools, 

responsibilities and evaluation measures for the new engagement approach.  
Underpinning the strategy will be a co-production framework which will define the 

technical basis for co-design and the circumstances when this does and does not 
apply.   
 

To inform the strategy two pieces of deep-dive community engagement are 
presently underway, which are instructive of the council’s intended approach. 

These are: 
 

 Research through the Covid-19 community champions initiative to help the 

Council better understand current community make-up in order that this can 
be mapped against the current engagement arrangements and 

partnerships, to make sure this is representative of the whole community.   

Page 101



 

 Targeted engagement to better understand the experience of Bury’s diverse 

communities, in the context of “race” being the protected characteristic 
which it was agreed to focus on this year as part of implementation of the 

Council’s inclusion strategy  
 
The LGA have presented a specific challenge in their feedback for the Council to 

consider “how far the Council (and potentially other partners) are willing to share 
space and power in the plan, what each will do with defined review stages”  This 

challenge is welcomed as the next step in developing the newly established 
neighbourhood model, which brings together all public services, VCSE 
organisations and residents together, in places and informed by data, to work 

together in improving local lives and improving outcomes.   
 

Immediate plans to define how “power” will be distributed will be through the 
planned work to develop the Let’s do it” principles (Local; Enterprise; Together and 
Strengths-Based) into a set of values which will be co-designed to apply across 

the Council and CCG.  The values framework is the intended intersect between 
communications and organisation development work, as recommended by the 

LGA team, and is within the scope of the internal transformation programme for 
delivery by April 2022. 

 

5 Recommendations 

 

The Cabinet is asked to: 
 

 Note the feedback from the LGA team 

 Endorse the “3R” Framework to inform prioritisation 

 Endorse the proposed action plan which will be incorporated in the next update to 

the Corporate Plan 

__________________________________________ 
Community impact / Contribution to the Bury 2030 Strategy 
The Feedback informs the Council’s ability to maximise its leadership of the Let’s do it!” 

strategy 

_______________________________________________________ 
Equality Impact and considerations: 
24. Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities is set 

out as follows:  
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to -  
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it;  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 

and persons who do not share it.  
25. The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we can positively 

contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations, and demonstrate that we are 
paying ‘due regard’ in our decision making in the design of policies and in the delivery of 
services.  

 

Page 102



 

These proposals do not yet define proposed changes for a policy, service or strategy. It 

is therefore not possible or appropriate to undertake Equality Assessments. The projects 
within individual delivery programs will however be subject to robust equality assessment 

during their development and prior to any implementation decisions being made. 

________________________________________________________  
Assessment of Risk:  
The following risks apply to the decision:  
  

Risk / opportunity  Mitigation  

The feedback highlights a number of risks in 
the council’s operating environment which are 
described in this report 

 

Failure of the Council to address strategy 
risks may inhibit delivery and/or financial 
resilience 

_____________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________ 
Consultation: 
The LGA team consulted with a sample of key stakeholders to inform their conclusions, 
as set out in their report 

_____________________________________________________________ 
Legal Implications: 
 
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
Financial Implications: 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
___________________________________________________________ 

  
Report Author and Contact Details: 
Lynne Ridsdale 

Deputy Chief Executive 
l.ridsdale@bury.gov.uk 

___________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:  
LGA Peer Review report 2018 
LGA Peer Challenge Revisit Report 2021 
Council self assessment 2021 
 
Please include a glossary of terms, abbreviations and acronyms used 
in this report.  

  

Page 103



 

Term  Meaning  

PSR Public Service Reform 

MTFS Medium term Financial Strategy 

Ameo The external consultancy who have provided 
short term advice on transformation 

LGA Local Government Association 

 
 

Page 104



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LGA Corporate Peer 
Challenge - Review 
 

 

Bury Council 
 
19th – 29th July 2021 

 
Feedback report 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

Page 105



 

2 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

1. Executive summary .............................................................................................. 3 

2. Key recommendations ......................................................................................... 5 

3. Summary of the peer challenge approach ........................................................... 7 

4. Feedback ........................................................................................................... 10 

5. Next steps .......................................................................................................... 21 

 
 
 
  

Page 106



 

3 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

1. Executive summary 
 

Bury Council had a Corporate Peer Challenge in November 2018. This came shortly after 

the Council had recently appointed a new Chief Executive who had also taken on the role 

of Accountable Officer for the local CCG. The 2018 report found that following successive 

years of dealing with significant budget reductions, totalling £65m from 2010 - 2018, the 

Council were seeing the effects of taking “a path of least resistance”. This included a 

shrinking of corporate support services, a dilution of key processes and a sense of 

disconnect horizontally and vertically across the officer cohort as well as from the corporate 

priorities to service delivery. Officers had taken on significant additional responsibilities 

beyond their experience or skillset and the senior management cohort was almost 

exclusively appointed on either an interim or acting up basis. 

 

The peer challenge report from November 2018 recommended that the Council take a 

number of actions including developing a new Corporate Plan and using this to prioritise 

the activity of the organisation. The Council were encouraged to strengthen financial 

management and bring support and enabling services together into a ‘Corporate Core’. A 

new Performance Management Framework was required and the Council were 

recommended to co-produce a new workforce culture as well as review organisational 

development. ICT infrastructure required investment following years of underinvestment. 

Doing so could then help the Council to define the digitisation journey it wished to go on. 

In 2018, the Council were keen to explore commercialisation so were encouraged to 

develop a strategy for this based on the agreed political and financial parameters locally. 

Lastly, it was clear that the Council had positive relationships with partner organisations in 

Bury – including those in the voluntary, community and faith sector. The Council were 

asked to review how they could get more benefit for Bury from partnership working and in 

particular the Team Bury local strategic partnership. 

 

This peer challenge has been able to observe how in many ways, Bury has become a 

different Council to what it was in 2018. The Council has made progress against a number 

of the recommendations made in 2018 which are detailed in greater depth throughout this 

report. In particular, working with partners, the Council has chartered a new 10 year 

Page 107



 

4 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

Borough Strategy for Bury led by the phrase “Let’s do it”, which is taken from the work of 

Victoria Wood, bringing local pertinence. This strategy seeks to build upon a shared sense 

of local pride and act as a call to arms for progressing the local vision of achieving ‘faster 

economic growth than the national average, with lower than national average levels of 

deprivation’.  

 

The Council has significantly strengthened and made more permanent the senior officer 

leadership of the Council by appointing an almost entirely new senior team, many of whom 

were appointed within the last 18 months. The Council have brought together many of 

those support and enabling services into a Corporate Core and have made progress in 

strengthening the approach to financial management since the 2018 review. 

 

Beyond the recommendations from 2018 however, the Council has also made significant 

progress in more closely aligning the Council with the CCG and has accelerated its work 

on economic development across the six distinctive townships. This has all been achieved 

despite the fact that for the last 15 months, the Council has been leading the local response 

to a global pandemic which has created unprecedented challenges and demands upon the 

Council. A role which is very much recognised by the partners across Bury. All considered, 

the pace of activity and organisational improvement seen has been significant. 

 

At the time of the 2018 peer challenge, the team left with a message that the Council has 

big ambitions and whilst the Council can choose to prioritise whatever it wants, it cannot 

choose to prioritise everything at once – meaning difficult choices would be required.  

 

Now as the Council moves closer towards what might be termed ‘business as usual’ and 

in seeking to lead a local recovery and renewal from the effects of COVID-19, there are 

even more choices and demands to prioritise. 

 

Responding to all of these demands has been tough. Capacity remains stretched. “Let’s 

do it” sends a strong positive and proactive message but the Council should guard against 

Page 108



 

5 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

this being interpreted as Let’s do everything. The Council made significant improvements 

in financial management since the 2018 review, but the harsh reality is that a further 

significant budget challenge must be faced between now and 2024/25.  

 

Much of the feedback contained within this report focusses upon helping the Council to 

meet this challenge on a sustained basis, whilst delivering on statutory requirements and 

local member priorities. The Council has demonstrated an ability to take on complex 

challenges and to be innovative, but key to achieving the next set of priorities is getting to 

a point where the Council is ‘consistently better at the basics’. This includes internal 

processes and support, as well as the outward facing services experienced by local 

residents and partners. Doing so will free up capacity and support the alignment between 

the capacity to deliver and the local priorities.  

 

Alongside further prioritisation, significantly accelerating the work required in terms of 

organisational development now has a much more pressing role than was the case in 2018.  

 

Done well, this can have a significant multiplier effect. It will help to release more capacity 

and channel this towards the local priorities. It will help in terms of building on the 

foundations of locality based public service reform. It will help Council services to both 

identify and capitalise on the opportunities from digitisation. It will also help the Council to 

consistently embed a new, corporate approach to community engagement and partnership 

working. All of which can be key to the next stage of ongoing improvement for the Council 

and the place. 

 

2. Key recommendations 
 

There are a number of observations and suggestions within the main section of the 

report. The following are the peer team’s key recommendations to the council: 

2.1. In light of the number of competing priorities now facing the Council, 

Page 109



 

6 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

prioritise again those objectives and actions which are the most critical 

corporately. Further embed an understanding of the corporate priorities and the 

future ways of working across the organisation through the forthcoming 

organisational development programme. 

2.2. Clearly set out and agree the approach and strategy for organisational 

development that senior leaders can then consistently champion. This 

approach is likely to require at different stages and in different instances both high 

support and high challenge. Further work is required on the modernisation of more 

fundamental HR processes as part of ‘getting the basics right’ to help enable this. 

2.3. Give focus to consistently ‘getting the basics right’ which will help increase 

the amount of capacity the Council can put towards the transformation 

ambitions, delivery of saving requirements and the corporate priorities. 

Examples of which include risk management, improvements in customer services, 

use of internal audit, complaints monitoring, tracking of member enquiries, HR 

processes and support for procurement. 

2.4. Continue to improve performance management and consider where further 

structural alignment of those in these functions is needed. Judge success by 

the quality, timing, engagement, and targeted nature of the decisions made 

possible both at a locality and borough level – rather than the amount of information 

that can be produced. Especially in more challenging areas. Key to this is both, the 

ability to challenge service performance as well as monitoring of strategic 

outcomes. It also includes continuing to support members in their roles by ensuring 

effective alignment with Cabinet member ambitions, responsibilities and 

accountability.  

2.5. Completing the planned structural review of the finance function will help to 

shift support for managers and budget holders more towards a business 

partner model. This can further support service managers to deliver in full the 

planned savings. Following this with support, training and more timely service level 

resource information will also help to improve savings delivery over the course of 

the next MTFS and help to understand early any financial interdependencies, 

duplications and lag. 

Page 110



 

7 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

2.6. Building on the progress made to develop a 2030 vision for Bury and building 

of relationships with partners, co-design the actions required to achieving 

the priorities under the 2030 vision. Doing this on equal terms will help create a 

wider sense of shared ownership of this vision. 

2.7. Work with others to co-design the Community Engagement Strategy. Embed 

the cultural and workforce requirements of this within the organisational 

development programme. This includes giving sufficient consideration to how far 

the Council (and potentially other partners) are willing to share space and power in 

the plan, what each will do with defined review stages. Consideration of any risks 

around this and further building the relationships to work through the challenges of 

implementing this will be important. 

 

3. Summary of the peer challenge approach 

The peer team 

 

Peer challenges are delivered by experienced elected member and officer peers.  The 

make-up of the ‘on-site’ peer team reflected the focus of the peer challenge and peers were 

selected on the basis of their relevant expertise.  The peers were: 

 

 Claire Symonds (Managing Director – London Borough of Barking and 

Dagenham) 

 Cllr Doug Taylor (London Borough of Enfield) 

 Cllr Sam Chapman-Allen (Leader – Breckland Council) 

 Jessica Crowe (Corporate Director of People, Policy and Performance – London 

Borough of Newham). 

 LGA Peer Challenge Manager – Dan Archer (LGA). 

 

 

Page 111



 

8 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

3.1. Scope and focus 
 

As part of this Corporate Peer Challenge review, the team explored progress against each of 

the recommendations from the original peer challenge, under the below themes. The aim of this 

work was not to review performance in all service areas at depth (such as adult services, 

children’s services and so forth), but to review progress made against the corporate 

recommendations made previously. 

 

Corporate prioritisation and informed decision making 

This included the following recommendations from the original CPC: 

 Develop a new Corporate Plan which states the priorities for the council over the next 

three years.  

 Develop and deliver a single, comprehensive corporate Performance Management 

Framework.  

 

Financial management and delivery 

This included the following recommendations from the original CPC: 

 Strengthen financial management and discipline, building on the action plan recently 

drafted.  

 Councillors and officers to co-design a considered, deliverable commercialisation 

strategy.  

 

The foundations for transformation 

This included the following recommendations from the original CPC: 

 Co-produce, then consistently live a new workforce culture. This should reflect the 

cultural requirements of a new ‘integrated’ organisation and empower all to meet the 

level of sustainable corporate transformation required.  

 Review organisational and workforce development.  

 Centralise relevant support and enabling services into a strong ‘Corporate Core’.  

Page 112



 

9 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

 Invest in the ICT infrastructure in its entirety (hardware, software, connectivity and 

training) based on clear business cases.  

 Define the council’s digital journey and the steps that will need to be taken to deliver it.   

 

Leadership of Place 

This included the following recommendations from the original CPC: 

 Review the role of the strategic ‘Team Bury’ partnership, the outcomes it can deliver 

for Bury and the governance arrangements required to do this.  

 Refresh the approach to community engagement and look at how the resourcing of the 

voluntary, community and faith (VCF) sector could have a greater impact on local 

priorities.  

 

3.2. The peer challenge process 

 

Peer challenges are improvement focused; it is important to stress that this was not an 

inspection. The process is not designed to provide an in-depth or technical assessment of 

plans and proposals. The peer team used their experience and knowledge of local 

government to reflect on the information presented to them by people they met, things they 

saw and material that they read.  

 

The peer team prepared by reviewing a range of documents and information in order to 

ensure they were familiar with the council and the challenges it is facing. The team then: 

 

 Spoke to around 80 members, officers and partners as well as additional 
research and reading. 
 

 Collectively spent around 128 hours to determine our findings. 
 

 The equivalent of one person spending over 3 weeks in Bury 
 
 
 

Page 113



 

10 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

This report provides a summary of the peer team’s findings. In presenting feedback, they 
have done so as fellow local government officers and members. 
 
 
 
 

4. Feedback 

4.1. Corporate prioritisation and informed decision making  

The Council now shares an up-to-date Corporate Plan with the CCG and is using this at a 

corporate level to bring consistency to what the Council delivers and how the Council 

operates. A clear link from the ‘Let’s do it!’ strategy for the borough to the Corporate Plan 

and MTFP is now in place. 

Staff are familiar with the Corporate Plan and the “Let’s Do It” strapline in particular, 

although currently this appears much more familiar to staff, than the specific priorities of 

the Council and place. Whilst the Council has clearly taken steps forward in terms of 

aligning corporate decisions behind the corporate priorities, there is not yet the familiarity 

with the set of corporate priorities and principles coming back from services in the same 

way. Crucially, there is at times a sense of too many priorities felt by those in services 

which may be due to the high level of strategic ambition at the Council. Further work is 

required to embed an understanding of the corporate priorities, set by members. This is 

key to how middle managers and front line staff plan, react and act when delivering 

services. There is a clear opportunity to further embed this through the forthcoming work 

on culture and organisational development. 

In addition to the work done to develop a new Corporate Plan and Borough Strategy, the 

Council has also been able to develop a new Housing Strategy, a refreshed Locality Plan 

for Health and Social Care, a Strategic Regeneration Framework for Radcliffe, a 

masterplan for Bury town centre and a town plan for Ramsbottom. The Council has also 

completed a refresh of the Constitution over this period. 

At the time of the November 2018 CPC, the Council had high level data dashboards, but 

they were not being used to consistently enable suitably targeted, informed, timely or 

Page 114



 

11 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

challenging performance discussions. The Council did not in fact appear to have a major 

appetite at that time for performance discussions. Progress can now be seen in this regard 

with an updated approach to performance management now in place. Senior officers 

appear to be starting to have more strategic performance discussions corporately, a 

direction of travel which should continue. 

Those in performance / business intelligence roles in the Corporate Core feel they are able 

to start challenging other colleagues more from being in the Corporate Core. Officers 

working in performance believe the Council, at a corporate level, is starting to develop an 

increased appreciation for performance management and are starting to use it at a more 

strategic level. There are still some performance functions sitting outside of the Corporate 

Core which may benefit from being aligned to the Corporate Core more closely. In 

particular this helps to remove any potential single points of failure in key service areas. 

A large amount of capacity in performance is however still stuck doing tasks from previous 

service roles, in particular there appears to still be a requirement for data 

movement/presentation tasks rather than analysis and insight. Freeing up more 

performance capacity and capability at this end is a stated development priority of the 

Council, with a commitment to invest in the development needs and resource requirements 

of this, which can help to realise big benefits across service areas and in terms of demand 

management, prevention and early intervention. 

The reliance upon daily, local COVID analysis and how this has been used to shape the 

response to the pandemic has created more curiosity across a wider cohort of members, 

and officers, around the value of performance information and the potential it has more 

widely. Some members and officers are becoming more familiar with performance 

management following this. On the back of this, the Council should consider what else can 

be done to support Cabinet members and Scrutiny in particular, with their specific roles, in 

this regard and the constructive challenge they can bring to service level performance. 

There is a need to continue to progress improvement in performance management. Judge 

success by the quality, timing, engagement and targeted nature of the decisions made 

possible both at a locality and borough level – rather than the amount of information that 

can be produced. Especially in more challenging areas – which includes service 

performance as well as strategic outcomes. Ensuring an effective alignment with Cabinet 

Page 115



 

12 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

member ambitions, responsibilities and accountability will also remain important. 

Effective performance management sits alongside a number of other internal processes 

which are key to the successful day-to-day management of any council. Having these wider 

‘basics’ in place supports informed decision making, helps manage and mitigate risk as 

well as identify and avoid issues from escalating. Ensuring the Council gets to a point of 

being consistently good at the basics will help the Council in continuing its improvement 

journey further, as well as help the Council in putting more of its capacity behind the 

corporate priorities. Examples of which include: 

 A more robust, comprehensive, considered and effective approach to risk 

management which includes having a corporate risk register which is used fully and  

closely monitored to manage the  risks effectively. 

 An approach to internal audit which is based on the risk register and provides further 

robust, internal challenge. 

 Complaints monitoring which helps identify issues earlier, in a more agile way and 

continue to paint a picture corporately from the intelligence this generates. 

 A system of members enquiries which is appropriately monitored for timely 

resolution and to inform corporate intelligence. 

 Improving the customer experience of accessing the Council and finding the right 

information and solution in quicker and more streamlined ways. This includes how 

customers and partners contact the Council and can see their queries addressed 

more quickly, embracing a more modern digital experience as part of this. 

 

4.2. Financial management and delivery 

 

Since the 2018 CPC, the Council has reviewed its financial framework which has included 

rewriting the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and updating this regularly to take 

account of the changing context – not least the challenges presented by COVID-19. Further 

Page 116



 

13 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

to this, the Council completed a review of the Capital programme and has put in place a 

new Capital strategy which has included establishing a £6m regeneration fund which is 

used on a pump prime basis for local regeneration schemes, then replenished when sites 

are disposed of and capital receipts are generated. The first programme this fund was used 

for being a major regeneration programme within Radcliffe. The Council has also 

rebalanced budgets over this period and implemented a new reserves strategy to bring 

more coherence to Council’s reserves position. The updates to the Constitution agreed by 

Full Council in 2020/21 included updated procedure rules and a revised financial scheme 

of delegation. 

 

The MTFS, capital programme and approach to asset management are now more closely 

linked to the 2030 strategy. The updated approach to asset management is being used to 

help further the approach to locality based delivery, as well as being used to support 

inclusive growth. 

 

The overall improvement in the approach to financial management and control at the 

Council is recognised by External Audit. These improvements were put in place to avoid 

the type of reliance on short term savings and non-strategic / unplanned use of reserves, 

which had become a feature previously. 

 

Despite all of these efforts, the harsh reality of the situation presented by COVID-19 is that 

further, ongoing savings will now be required. The Council’s MTFS presented to Cabinet 

and Full Council in February 2021 highlights a financial gap of £60.3m. £27.3m of which is 

considered short term COVID related costs and losses of income which would return to 

normal and a further £33m which would be required by 2024/25. Savings have been agreed 

that equate to £21.9m, with a further £11m to be identified for 2023/24 (although these 

figures may vary as more information becomes available over this period). In order to meet 

this budget challenge on a sustainable basis, the Council have made a strategic decision 

to use c£12.3m of reserves in 2021/22 and a further £14.3m in 2022/23. This strategic 

choice affords the Council a short window of time to meet this budget challenge on a 

sustained basis, leading into the 2023/24 financial year. Reserves are projected to fall from 

£70m in 2019/20 to £36m in 2022/23 in the lead up to this, so this time is precious and 

Page 117



 

14 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

must be used to full effect in delivering fully and sustainably on the saving requirements. 

 

The Council is significantly reliant on the delivery of the three pillars of the transformation 

programme by 2022/23. Managing the delivery of this budget challenge will require 

sufficient capacity, a clear and consistent read across and understanding of 

interdependencies as well as any hidden costs and time lag. Verifying that all of the 

projected savings are attributed solely to one saving and are not included elsewhere is 

crucial. This includes the recognition of any subsequent additional  costs as a result of 

those changes. 

 

Further-to-this, there are significant wider pressures that also need managing such as 

£85m across the integrated health and social care system in 2022 and the need to deal 

with the pressures from the Dedicated Schools Grant by 2024/25, following the £16m of 

revenue support provided by the Department for Education through ‘Project Safety Valve’.  

 

Key to making this work is a consistent culture of robust savings and budget management 

and monitoring. If savings identified can’t/aren’t delivered, this needs to be owned by the 

service and challenged across the corporate team. All members and officers need to be 

aware of the extent of the wider financial challenge this combined picture presents, which 

is key to the ownership that is required to make it happen. Afterall, if a saving can’t be 

delivered in one way, it has to be delivered in another. 

 

Support and financial information for all stakeholders (members and officers) needs to be 

further developed to ensure the new expectations and practices are fully understood with 

resources trackable (such as an up-to-date establishment list) in what is closer to real time. 

The Council has committed to a package of training and support to all budget holders and 

managers to ensure new practices are understood and implemented. Completing the 

planned structural review of the finance function and shifting more towards a business 

partner model will also help in supporting service managers and budget holders in owning 

and realising the necessary savings and income requirements. 

 

Page 118



 

15 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

One of the recommendations from the 2018 CPC was for the Council to develop a 

commercialisation strategy. This was on the back of a growing interest from some 

members and officers at that time to become increasingly commercial as a way of 

supporting the Council’s net revenue budget position. This is not a document that the 

Council is statutorily required to have but is considered good practice when a Council is 

looking to become increasingly commercial as a way of setting out some clear political, 

financial and strategic parameters as well as risk appetite within which the Council may 

consider being commercial. Work on this strategy has not yet started, although this is an 

area that some members and officers have been reflecting on again more recently, taking 

on board the current context in which local government operates which includes the 

opportunities and challenges in local economies following on from the COVID-19 

pandemic, as well as the different opportunities available to councils in this regard. There 

is a commitment from the Council to complete a Commercialisation Strategy over the 

current financial year.  

 

4.3. The foundations for transformation 

Following the recommendation made in the 2018 CPC report, the Council restructured to 

bring together most of the enabling and support functions into a ‘Corporate Core’, to 

support resilience, consistency, promote further efficiency and provide additional corporate 

grip. Having the Corporate Core in place has also started to see benefits for the Council – 

for example, the speed at which COVID analysis was able to be produced on a daily basis 

and shared with senior decision makers. 

The additional grip brought by the Corporate Core is recognised by services but for some, 

can feel like an additional requirement to meet. Continuing to evolve the role that the 

Corporate Core takes should remain in focus and be alive to the wider organisational 

development and culture work that is due to take place.  

There are other emerging priority areas which will be a feature of how the organisation 

develops which the role that the Corporate Core might be considered in light of, such as 

increased community engagement as a way of working corporately. To do this well a sense 

of empowerment and consistency will be important.  A balanced, gradual move more 

Page 119



 

16 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

towards a Business Partner model, might in this context become more of a feature moving 

forward. Within the Corporate Core, there may also be an opportunity to reflect on the 

service areas and processes which may need to alter their level of performance to support 

senior managers and middle managers differently – better meeting the needs of the 

Council and part of a movement towards being consistently strong on ‘the basics’. 

Examples of which may include some HR processes and support for procurement. 

The Council now has a stronger, more permanent senior management team than was the 

case at the time of the last CPC in November 2018, a team which operates as single and 

joint team across the Council and CCG. The team structure now gives the Council a 

stronger basis to progress the Council’s vision and priorities. Given the scale of the 

council’s ambitions, the strength of the overall Council team is going to be key – including 

how senior managers work with, support and challenge middle managers. 

Across the Council in response to open questions, staff consistently offered words around 

‘changing’ as a current descriptor of the Council in 2021. This is welcomed by many, many 

want to see more of this happen, and a number want to help more with this. 

An increased level of communication continues to be a feature compared to 2018, 

something that has been a feature of the last 6 months or so especially and is now in a 

more regular state than was the case in early 2018. The Council have established a Senior 

Leader’s Group, Senior Management Forum and a network of volunteer staff change 

agents. In addition to this, there are weekly staff webinars and weekly email briefings which 

are all examples of this. 

Where functions have been aligned with the CCG – relationships appear very strong, 

positive, proactive and outcomes focussed (for example, across business intelligence). 

Below senior management team level, some of the workforce challenges seen in 

November 2018 remain and beyond the high level principles set out in the Corporate Plan, 

the Council has not yet significantly embedded a new, whole organisation workforce 

culture. 

Closely aligning the new workforce culture to how the Council wishes to work with local 

communities and partners more closely, as well as increasingly orientating public services 

Page 120



 

17 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

around/through locality models of delivery can help to bring corporate consistency and 

create new opportunities and delivery approaches.  

To further the Council’s work in terms of organisational development and culture, a Director 

of People and Inclusion has been appointed, who started with the Council only 9 weeks 

before the peer team were on site. With this additional capacity and capability which signals 

the Council’s intentions in this regard, the need for organisational development is clearly 

recognised and welcomed by senior officers. 

The Council are now recommended to clearly set out and agree the approach and strategy 

for organisational development that senior leaders can then consistently support. This 

approach is likely to require at different stages and in different instances both high support 

and high challenge. Further work is required on the modernisation of more fundamental 

HR processes as part of ‘getting the basics right’ to help enable this.  

Beyond this, the Leader and CEX speak with enthusiasm about the opportunity to be part 

of something genuinely special in Bury, particularly given work being done to reform public 

services around places. Refining a succinct and consistent way of telling the story of why 

providing public service in Bury is different and changing, why people will want to work, 

stay or come to Bury and why that time is now, has a role also in the work on organisational 

development and developing this new identity and culture. There is clear evidence in some 

service areas across the sector as to the impact this can have on outcomes and the 

financial benefits this can also present back to the Council in terms of reduced HR and 

agency costs. 

A further aspect to include within this wider programme of organisational and workforce 

development are the skills to spot and capitalise on new digital opportunities available to 

the Council.  

Since the 2018 CPC, some investments have been made in ICT infrastructure including 

the upgrade of unsupported servers and the roll out of new devices although further work 

is required to provide fit for purpose ICT infrastructure which drives a digital first strategy. 

There have been a number of successes to date, including over the last year: 

 Successfully managing an increase in the number of staff who work remotely from 

Page 121



 

18 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

around 100 per day to around 1,000 per day. 

 Implementation of a new telephony system – switching all call centres to a new 

contact management system. 

 Moving the Council’s HR system from on-premises servers to cloud based systems. 

Although a great deal of further work is required which reflects a historical under investment 

in ICT seen at the Council for a number of years. This includes completing the roll out of 

Microsoft Office 365 to all members and staff as well as going further with the device 

replacement programme. 

Over this period, the shift to agile working has been received well by many staff and creates 

further possibilities for how ways of working could be modernised and supported moving 

forwards. As put by one officer - “we’ve found that agile works. But how could we make it 

work better for us?”.  

There are some basics that would assist with this, for example making it much easier to 

find the email and phone contact details for colleagues as well as their availability. Another 

might be in supporting staff from the Council to see the intranet of those in the CCG (and 

vica-versa).  

The Council were challenged previously to establish a roadmap for its digital 

modernisation. Progress in this regard can now be seen through the transformation 

programme presented to Cabinet in July 2021. Ensuring the implications of this work are 

fully understood by all stakeholders will remain important throughout this work and the 

newly established board should now have a clear role in this. 

There are clearly capacity requirements to fully realise the benefits of this but seeing this 

programme through makes a key contribution to how the Council addresses the wider 

budget challenge and can then further modernise and innovate on the back of this. 

 

 

Page 122



 

19 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

4.4. Leadership of Place 

 

“COVID has been a real rollercoaster and relationship builder with our partners” 

 

The Council appears to have built up more credit and trust with the community over the 

course of the last year in leading the local response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

The Council stated an intention to establish a new relationship with communities based on 

meaningful voice, co-design and collaboration as part of its position statement leading into 

this peer challenge. Given that trust is often hard to gain but easy to lose, how this evolving 

approach is developed and implemented with consistency will be important and should be 

closely linked to both the work on organisational development and a locality led approach 

to wider public service reform. 

 

Key to which will be how officers of the Council work with and demonstrate an 

understanding of the local voluntary, community and faith sector.  

 

Given a Community Engagement Strategy is due to be developed in 2021/22, considering 

in detail how far the Council and others are willing to go in this relationship will be important 

as a way of being clear about expectations and then being consistent with the commitments 

made as part of this strategy. This includes how much space and control in each of the 

plan, do and review stages the Council is happy to share or let go of. This should be based 

on a considered assessment of the opportunities and risks this might present, when it 

would be appropriate and the conditions in which it would not as well as the relationships 

required of this – which includes being able to work through any challenges this presents. 

 

When looking at partnership working at a local strategic partnership level through Team 

Bury, the work done to develop the 2030 strategy is recognised by partners. Team Bury 

now meets more regularly than was the case when the peer team were in Bury in 2018. 

The Council is recognised as being a different type of partner now than was the case in 

Page 123



 

20 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

2018 with the level of engagement from the Leader and CEX in particular recognised by 

partners. With some partners, the Council is now seen as being more ‘business friendly’ in 

how it operates at this level and there is a recognition for the steps the Council took to set 

up a Business Leader’s Group, with business leaders now also involved in some Council 

recruitment. 

 

The next stage in, embedding and implementing the 2030 strategy will be key. Some 

partners see the 2030 strategy as a document they jointly own, however some see it as a 

Council document about the place which they have seen. The next planned stage will 

involve the co-design of the actions that sit underneath the current priorities specified in 

this document. This presents a test for partnership working locally – and requires exploring 

‘the art of the possible’, requiring mutual openness to either taking on different roles or co-

designing new solutions, rather than listing what each partner is already committed to 

doing. 

 

Many partners are open to working in new ways - “we want the Council to tell us what we 

can do to help”, which in some ways is a great opportunity. To embed partnership working 

more deeply, the design of delivery plans needs to be truly shared on more equal terms. It 

is not about the Council telling people what they want from them – rather sharing the design 

space around these priorities. 

 

Suitable governance arrangements based on delivery can then follow on from this – the 

pace of communication and at which decisions can be made being particularly important 

to partners. Looking at who is around the ‘Team Bury’ table and who could be is also a part 

of this – an action the partnership have already committed to. 

 

Significant progress has been made in terms of locality and neighbourhood working since 

2018, with this way of working now much more embedded across the social care system. 

There are opportunities to continue to grow this further with all of the potential benefits for 

health, social care and education. This can have a big impact on local outcomes – as well 

as the use of public sector spend on these issues in Bury. Reflecting on the roles of ward 

Page 124



 

21 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

members within the localities model, as well as how they interface with officers (and vica- 

versa - including front line and middle managers) will continue to be an important 

consideration as this model continues to develop. This relationship, at a locality level might 

also be a feature of the organisational development programme. 

 

Stronger, more collaborative relationships are seen with partners around Health and Social 

Care on the back of the work done to date, which public and community organisations 

locally can continue to build upon. Given the changes presented by the ICS White Paper, 

the Council has shown strong place leadership by taking steps to ensure this change does 

not have a derailing effect on the work done to prioritise a locality focussed approach to 

public service delivery which are so central to the local vision for public services in Bury 

and the delivery of the 2030 vision. 

 

The presence that Bury has in Greater Manchester will continue to have a significant role 

in realising the ambitions of the 2030 vision. How the Council is able to act as a place 

leader for Bury in Greater Manchester will therefore have ongoing capacity requirements. 

Continuing to define and then resource the relationship Bury wants with Greater 

Manchester (and beyond) longer term will remain a challenge for the Council. 

 

 

5. Next steps 
 

It is recognised that senior political and managerial leadership will want to consider, discuss 

and reflect on these findings.  

 

Both the peer team and LGA are keen to build on the relationships formed through the peer 

challenge. The CPC process includes a six month check-in meeting.  This will be a short, 

facilitated session which creates space for the council’s senior leadership to update peers 

on its progress against the action plan and discuss next steps.  

 

Page 125



 

22 
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ     www.local.gov.uk      Telephone 020 7664 3000      Email info@local.gov.uk      Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  
Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 
 

 
  

In the meantime, Claire Hogan, LGA Principal Adviser for the North West, is the main 

contact between your authority and the Local Government Association. Claire is available 

to discuss any further support the council requires; her email address is 

Claire.Hogan@local.gov.uk  

Page 126



Draft Agenda Plan 2021/22 0- Overview and Scrutiny 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Deadline 

for reports 

to DS 

Agenda 

Publication 

Date 

Deadline 

for 

submission 

of advance 

questions 

from 

Members 

Items for the 

Meeting 

Officers/Cabinet 

Member 

20.07.2021 08.07.2021 12.07.2021 19.07.2021 

(10am) 

Climate Change 

Action Plan 

Decarbonisation 

Fund 

Clean Air Plan 

 

Donna Ball 

Cllr Quinn 

14.09.2021 03.09.2021 06.09.2021 13.09.2021 

(10am) 

Town Centre 

Regeneration 

(focus on one 

particular town 

centre) Item to 

potentially 

include:   

- Site Visits 

- Links to skills 

for 

employment 

and 

neighbourhood 

working 

model. 

 

 

Paul Lakin 

Lynne Ridsdale 

Cllrs 

O’Brien/Rafiq/Gold? 

18.11.2021 08.11.2021 10.11.2021 17.11.2021 

(10am) 

homelessness, 

rough sleeper 

initiatives, 

Afghan project, 

Tenancy Ready 

and eviction 

rates 

Peer Review 

Howard 

Bernstein 

 

Matters arising 

– sub group 

Cllr Cummins 

J.Summerscales 

P Cole 

 

 

 

 

G. Little  

11.01.2022 30.12.2021 03.01.2022 10.01.2022 

(10am) 

Crime and 

Disorder 

 

CSP 

 

 

 

Lynne Ridsdale  

Cllr Gold 

 

Chris Hall 

08.02.2022 

(BUDGET) 

28.01.2021 31.01.2021 07.02.2022 

(10am) 

Budgetary 

Items 

Sam Evans 

Cllr O’Brien 

Page 127 Agenda Item 10



23.03.2022 11.03.2022 15.03.2022 22.03.2022 

(10am 

Corporate Plan 

(Annual 

Outcomes) 

Lynne Ridsdale 

Cllr Rafiq 

 

 

Note: Quarterly Corporate Performance and Financial Monitoring reports to 

be scheduled in line with Cabinet Reporting timescales being mindful of not 

overloading agendas. 

 

Page 128


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	Minutes

	6 MEMBER QUESTIONS
	7 REGENERATION FOLLOW UP ITEM
	O&S November 21 DL

	8 HOUSING REPORT
	Appendix 1 - Housing Portfolio Update

	9 LGA CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE FEEDBACK
	LGACorporatePeerChallengeFeedbackAppendix

	10 WORK PROGRAMME

